
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corvallis-Benton County  
Public Library Board Meeting

A G E N D A  

 Call to Order 

 Visitors’ Propositions 

 Approval of June 1, 2011 Board Minutes 

 Library Board Packet Questions & Comments 

 Election of Board Officers  

 Director’s Report 

 Library Policies Review: 

 Circulation Policy 
 Confidentiality Policy 
 Selection of Materials 

 Division Manager Reports 

 Committee and Board Reports 

 Friends of the Library Board 
 Foundation Board 

 Information Sharing 

Wednesday 
September 7, 2011 

 
7:30 pm 

 
Woman’s Club 

Board Room 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you are unable to attend the Board 
Meeting, please notify Library Director 
Carolyn Rawles-Heiser by calling 
(541) 766-6910. 

 

Documents for Meeting 

 Library Board Minutes – June 1, 2011 

 Library Board Reports – June, July, and August 2011 

 Correspondence 

 FY 10-11 4th Quarter Statistics Summary 



Page 1 of 3 

CORVALLIS-BENTON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES
June 1, 2011

Board Present Staff Present

Jacque Schreck, Vice-Chair Carolyn Rawles-Heiser, Library Director
Mike Beilstein Janelle Cook, Senior Administrative Assistant
Megan Castellano Andrew Cherbas, Supervising Librarian
Judith Edelstein Mary Finnegan, Adult Services Manager
Scott Elmshaeuser Curtis Kiefer, Youth Services Manager
Samantha Fisher Mary Norman, Access Services Manager
Martha Fraundorf
David Low
Isabela Mackey

Excused: Visitors:
Corrine Gobeli, Leanne Giordono, Linda Modrell,
Sandy Ridlington

None

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item Information Only Action

Call to Order 7:33 pm

Visitors’ Propositions  None

Minutes: May 4, 2011 Approved

Library Board Packet x

Director’s Report x

Division Manager Reports x

Board Reports
• Friends of the Library Board
• Foundation Board

x
No Report

Information Sharing x

Adjournment 8:42 pm

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

      I. CALL TO ORDER

Vice-Chair Jacque Schreck called the meeting to order at 7:33 pm. 



Page 2 of 3 

     II. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS

None.

    III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion: Judith Edelstein moved approval of the May 4, 2011 minutes as submitted. The motion was
seconded by David Low and passed.

     IV. LIBRARY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

Martha Fraundorf commended staff after witnessing them go above and beyond to help a patron with
an unusual situation. David noted the Library Foundation Treasurer Paul Dickey has generously volunteered
to assist the Friends with their portion of DonorPerfect, which is a software package for tracking gifts and
donations. The Friends and the Foundation both help fund DonorPerfect. Jacque concurred that Paul is a real
asset to the Library. Furthermore, Jacque expressed her gratitude to all who assisted with the passage of the
levy. 

      V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Carolyn Rawles-Heiser echoed Jacque’s appreciation on the passage of the levy. She was very
impressed by the margin of victory. Andrew Cherbas has been promoted to Division Manager of Extension
Services and Technology. He will continue to be in charge of the branch libraries and the Bookmobile.
Additionally, Andrew will work more closely with the City’s MIS staff to build up the Library’s technology
resources. This is Mary Norman’s last Board meeting. She will be retiring at the end of June. An in-house
recruitment is underway to replace Librarian Heather Brockerman in Technical Services. Senior Administrative
Specialist Janelle Cook will be the new editor and designer of Check It Out, the Library’s bi-monthly newsletter
beginning with the September/October 2011 issue. Looking ahead to next year’s budget, it is going to require
some creative thought on where cuts can be made because the services and staff included in the levy are not
options. Thus, fresh ideas will be needed if further cuts are necessary. City Manager Jon Nelson is also
retiring at the end of the month and his going away party will be held at the Library on June 29 in the late
afternoon. Carolyn handed out reuseable shopping totes to the Board members as a thank you from the City
for their volunteer service. The South Benton Library Project group had a successful meeting with the County
Commissioners regarding their CDBG grant application. It was approved and will move on to the State level.
Carolyn highly commended the group working on raising funds for the new Monroe Library. Further letters
have been received about the young adults hanging out in front of the Library. A staff member has been asked
to look into the possibility of piping classical music onto the plaza. Mike Beilstein informed the Board the City
Councilors were discussing this issue earlier in the day and they suggested some type of public forum should
be organized. Carolyn said she is open to participating, but any type of forum would need to include the young
adults. Judith added this is not just a Library issue, but a community issue. She has heard complaints from
residents of Park Plaza apartments. David inquired if the new non-smoking ban has been a deterrent and
Carolyn replied that although the new ordinance was approved, the signs have not been posted outside yet.
Isabela Mackey asked what she should tell patrons who ask her about why the Library needs more money yet
was able to recently purchase a new Bookmobile and upgrade the lighting in the parking garage. Carolyn
spent several minutes answering her question and giving examples of cost-saving measures the Library has
undertaken. David suggested posting Carolyn’s responses somewhere such as the web site to help patrons
better understand that the Library is not mismanaging or being frivolous with the taxpayers’ money. Carolyn
concurred this was a good idea and said she would prepare an FAQ for posting on the web site as well as a
handout for Board members to use when answering these types of questions from the community.

    VI. DIVISION MANAGER REPORTS

Access Services: Mary Norman said it was quite a process to decide what to put into the new DVD
dispensing machine which will be installed tomorrow. Technical Services worked with Youth Services on the
parameters. A belated start on purchasing collection materials has caused an increase in the usual workload
this time of year for Technical Services. Mary feels good about leaving the Library in good hands. 



Page 3 of 3 

Administration: No report.

Adult Services: Mary Finnegan told the Board that downloadable materials continue to be the hot
item. Short sessions on how to use the electronic equipment are being offered by the Reference Librarians.

Extensions: Andrew Cherbas reported staff is working on a data sheet for the new Bookmobile
because patrons want to know about the new vehicle. The Sprinter Van is already paying off in that the old
Bookmobile cost about four times as much to maintain. Additionally, about 20 stops were cut from the old
Bookmobile schedule because they were not being utilized, which reduced check-out statistics by about 300.
However, with the new Bookmobile, a stop at the YES House has been added and that stop alone will likely
make up that figure. This stop would have been impossible with the previous Bookmobile due to location. A
huge bonus is the flexibility to swap out the collections on the new Bookmobile. The graphics will be applied
next week by a local company.  

Circulation: No report. 

Youth Services: According to Curtis Kiefer, Public Works staff is looking for a storage solution for the
Belluschi Wing chairs that were recently cleaned and fumigated. Library staff is working on a long-term
solution for the Belluschi Wing in terms of functionality. The Chintimini Chamber Music Festival will be held on
June 22 and the Teddy Bear Picnic is at 10 am on June 23.  

   VII. BOARD REPORTS

Friends of the Library: David reported the Friends’ annual meeting is coming up on June 8 following 
Random Review. The Friends currently have over 120 friends on their Facebook page. Policies and bylaws
were reviewed at last month’s meeting. Fiftieth Anniversary events are being planned for the fall and the
details will be enumerated at a future meeting.

Foundation Board: No report. The next meeting is scheduled for June 6. A volunteer to be the new
Foundation liaison is still needed to replace Sandy Ridlington who has retired from the Library Board. 

  VIII. INFORMATION SHARING

The Board presented Sammi Fisher with a going away gift. Sammi has been the Board’s student
representative for the past four years and she will be attending University of Oregon in the fall. A tour of the
new Bookmobile was offered by Andrew following the adjournment of the meeting. There will be no Board
meetings in July or August. 

    IX. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:42 pm.

NEXT MEETING: September 7, 2011 at 7:30 pm



Library Board Report
Presented September 7, 2011

REPORTING PERIOD – June 2011

A.  Department Highlights

Administration
• The Library received $2,270 from the Oregon Energy Trust for our recent

installation of energy efficient inductive lighting in the parking garage.
• Management Team had discussions about staffing and department organization

in light of recent retirements and resignations.
• Senior Administrative Specialist Janelle Cook helped coordinate several

recruitments throughout the department.
• Management Assistant Carol Klamkin worked on the accounting details to

manage levy funded parts of the Library budget. For accounting purposes there
is now a new “Operations Levy 2011" division. New time sheets were also
created for staff whose positions are now funded by the levy.

• Fiscal year end closing created a flurry of activity in the division. Final invoices
were processed, petty cash and change funds were counted and reconciled, and
new purchase orders were created.

• To celebrate the new year and say good-bye to the old, Administration hosted a
Red, White, and Blue party for staff on July 1st.  

• Confirmation was received from Universal Service Administrative Company
(USAC) Schools and Library Division that our request for FY 11-12 E-Rate
reimbursements for certain telecommunication costs was approved. We are
eligible to receive up to $7,783, depending on our actual expenses. Carol
Klamkin manages this activity.

Library Services
Access Services
• Shelver Ashley Hinchman left the Library on June 15 and Shelver Stephen

Whitener’s last day will be July 12.  
• With the June 30 retirement of Mary Norman, supervision of the Technical

Services Division will be assumed by Adult Services Manager Mary Finnegan
and Youth Services Manager Curtis Kiefer will take up the managerial reins in the
Circulation Division.

• Recruitments will open for the vacant Access Librarian position in TSD and two
half-time Shelver positions in Circulation. 

• In Technical Services most of the kinks have been ironed out of the “shelf-ready”
process with Baker and Taylor. However, they are still having a little trouble
getting the spine labels exactly as we want them. We will continue to work with
them.

 



Library Board Report
Presented September 7, 2011
REPORTING PERIOD – June 2011
Page 2

Adult Services
• Sharon Grant, Reference Librarian, has accepted a position as Digital Branch

Librarian at Kitsap Regional Library. Her last day will be in mid-July.
• Two more download clinics were held to assist Library users in downloading

materials via the statewide Library2Go program.
• Recruitment has started for two vacant Librarian positions. 

 
Extension Services
• The Bookmobile graphics were put on this month. They look excellent. A big

thank you to the Friends of the Library for paying for the graphics.
• Summer Reading has started in the branches. All programs so far have been

extremely successful.
• Recruitment has started for the Bookmobile’s Community Library Specialist

position and the Extensions Librarian position.

Youth Services
• Over 500 youth signed up for Summer Reading in the first week.
• Over 300 children and caregivers attended two performances by the Chintimini

Chamber Music Festival of The Tortoise and the Hare and The Boy Who Cried
Wolf. These are two new pieces receiving their Corvallis premiere.

• Over 350 children and caregivers were entertained by The Mud Pie Divas at the
Library’s annual Teddy Bear Picnic. Storybook characters Toot and Puddle were
surprise guests. Unfortunately, we had to move the picnic inside the Library
meeting room because of wet weather.

• Over 150 children were entertained by Tom Question at the kick-off of our regular
Thursday Summer Reading events.

• The 509J free lunch program is attracting an average of 40 kids per day.

B.  Other
• The Friends of the Library held their annual membership meeting. Reports were

given by each board member about their activities and accomplishments over the
last year. The Board next meets on September 19.























Library Board Report
Presented September 7, 2011

REPORTING PERIOD – July 2011

A.  Department Highlights

Administration
• Library Management Team had several discussions about staffing levels, in light

of recent retirements and vacant positions. Several recruitments were initiated.
• New time sheets were developed and systems put in place to more easily track

and record hours worked by staff whose positions are funded by the levy.  

Library Services
Access Services
• Youth groups always enjoy “behind the scene” tours. Two groups visited

Technical Services this month. Although these visits are brief, Library Specialist
III Denise Swearingin interacts well with young children and can make a disc
cleaner fascinating.  

• Preprocessing services provided by our vendors are still being fine-tuned. 
• There were 411 applicants for the two shelver positions open in Circulation. We

will be testing over 350 of them the first week in August.
• Three staff from Circ attended the OLA Support Staff Division annual conference. 

• Two Circ staff attended a workshop at the SSD conference in simple quick
mending techniques that will help speed the repair of materials in the library.

Adult Services
• Reference Librarian Sharon Grant accepted a position as digital branch manager

at the Kitsap Regional Library. Her last day was July 19.
• Reference Librarian Carrie Ottow attended Digipalooza in Cleveland, Ohio. This

is Overdrive’s International User Group Conference for partner libraries.
• Carrie Ottow just completed her term as Chair of the statewide Oregon Digital

Library Consortium which provides downloadable audio and ebooks.

Extension Services
• Summer Reading programs have been well received at all branches. 
• The Extensions office has been preparing for the eventual integration of Floating

Collections sometime in the Fall. Floating collections means that items remain at
the branch where they were returned.

• The Community Library Specialist position for the Bookmobile has closed and we
will be doing interviews August 10th and 11th. 

• The Extensions Librarian recruitment has closed and we will be reviewing
applications shortly. 



Library Board Report
Presented September 7, 2011
REPORTING PERIOD – July 2011
Page 2

Youth Services
• Forty-eight teens attended a fun-filled evening at the Luxe Late Nite at the

Library. They ate pizza, did a scavenger-hunt, played video games, made
Twinkie sushi, and generally enjoyed themselves.

• On average, 45 meals are served each day at the Library through the free lunch
program.

• Over 1,300 children in Corvallis have participated in the Library’s Summer
Reading program to date.

B.  Other
• The World of Ideas noon lecture series attracted 273 attendees for its four

programs. The series was co-sponsored by the Library, Benton Historical
Museum, and LBCC Benton Center and was funded by John Croy and an
anonymous donor.

















Library Board Report
Presented September 7, 2011

REPORTING PERIOD – August 2011

A.  Department Highlights

Administration
• The committee for Fall Staff In-Service Day had its first four meetings. Planning

for a full day of programs on October 19 is coming together. Library Director
Carolyn Rawles-Heiser and Management Assistant Carol Klamkin are the co-
chairs.

• As part of the Library’s sustainability efforts, we recently purchased our own
larger “dumpster” for garbage and decreased our pickup service from twice a
week to once a week. Adam Steele, from Public Works, had been monitoring our
trash volumes for the last year. He determined that owning our own dumpster
instead of renting it and decreasing pickup frequency will save the Library
approximately $1750 per year! This change was possible because the Library is
doing a great job of recycling and composting, and much less goes to the landfill
than in the past.

• Letters were sent to eight non-profit organizations to confirm their reservations
for booth spaces in front of the Library during Fall Festival: Responsible Mothers
& Others, Senior Dog Rescue, Benton County Democrats, Home Life, Corvallis
to the Sea Trail, Planned Parenthood, ACLU & NAACP, League of Women
Voters, and Environmental Action Council of Unitarian Universalist Fellowship.

• Senior Administrative Specialist Janelle Cook completed her first Check It Out
newsletter as the new editor, taking over from Carol Klamkin. Not only did she
coordinate all the article submissions, she did all the graphic design to revise the
layout, and dealt with the printer.

• Senior Administrative Specialist Erin Kahle compiled the list of donors who gave
to the Library, Friends of the Library, and Foundation from July 2010 through
June 2011. Six hundred forty-five donors are named on the list, which is included
in the September/October edition of Check It Out.

Library Services
Access Services
• Circulation welcomed Simon Tatom, a new Library Specialist II. He transferred to

the Library from Public Works.  
• Circulation finished the recruitment for two shelvers who will start in September.

More than 400 people applied for the two half-time positions.  
• Library Specialist III Tammy Rider is serving on the community-wide Random

Review committee. They have completed their selection process and have a new
year of great reviews planned.  

 



Library Board Report
Presented September 7, 2011
REPORTING PERIOD – August 2011
Page 2

Adult Services
• Librarian Alexandra Regan also served on the Random Review committee. See

notes above. 
• We completed our annual review of the magazine collection, cancelling low use

titles and adding a few new titles. 
 

Extension Services
• We are excited to announce that Peggy Giles will be the new Bookmobile driver.

We will now be looking to fill Peggy’s previous position of Courier Driver.
• The recruitment process for the Extensions Librarian is coming along.
• Suzy Conway in Philomath retired at the end of August and we will be filling her

half-time Librarian position in the near future. 
• The Bookmobile had almost 700 visitors at the Benton County fair. We were very

pleased with the turnout and will definitely be going back next year. 

Youth Services
• The Library once again worked with Parks & Recreation to host Last Chance

Camp the last week of August. This has been a successful collaboration in past
years.

• The Library held its final 2011 Summer Reading program on August 11th. Kids
enjoyed a magic show and balloon sculptures. Readers who completed the
program were able to receive their certificates.

• Youth staff are modifying work schedules to better reflect operational needs on
our busiest days.

• Youth staff are looking at how best to staff the teen area after school by being
proactive.

• Staff are working on a major promotion of library databases specifically designed
to help with homework assignments for the month of September.

B.  Other
• The Friends of the Library and the Foundation installed a new display area in the

lobby. It is located near the entrance to the 50¢ Book Shelf Room.





















FY 10/11 FY 09/10 % Change
Circulation

Main 1,445,939 1,493,722 -3.20%
Extensions 180,153 180,634 -0.27%
Library2Go 27,644 16,774 64.80%
Total 1,653,736 1,691,130 -2.21%

Registered Borrowers 50,631 49,961 1.34%

Holds
Placed 278,931 320,703 -13.03%
Filled 285,677 308,997 -7.55%

Billing Notices Processed 4,589 5,096 -9.95%
Fines Collected $75,873 $56,590 34.07%
Net Lost & Paid $16,320 $15,675 4.11%

New Out of County Cards
Paid 17 20 -15.00%
Free 146 154 -5.19%
Total 163 174 -6.32%

Loans to other Libraries 1,740 4,226 -58.83%
Loans from other Libraries 631 4,768 -86.77%

Visits*
Door Count 842,817 926,028 -8.99%
Remote Usage 1,048,113 949,484 10.39%
I-tiva 10,877 10,070 8.01%
Total 1,901,807 1,885,582 0.86%

Staff Public Interactions
Ref/Info Questions 241,059 239,863 0.50%
Directional Questions 48,516 48,269 0.51%
Meeting Room 977 1,093 -10.61%

Volunteers 322 284 13.38%
Volunteer Hours 16,043.25 14,806.00 8.36%

Items Added 41,991 50,248 -16.43%
Items Mended 17,003 10,680 59.20%
Items Discarded 35,515 47,775 -25.66%

Total Items in Collection 345,279 347,465 -0.63%

NOTE: *FY 10-11 Hours reduced  @ Corvallis Public Library
from 69 per week to 56 per week, including closed on Sundays.

4th Quarter YTD Statistics Summary


	Agenda 090711
	Library Board Minutes 060111 DRAFT
	Board Report June 2011
	Board Packet 0611_1.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_10.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_2.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_3.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_4.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_5.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_6.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_7.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_8.pdf
	Board Packet 0611_9.pdf

	Board Report July 2011
	Board Report 0711_1.pdf
	Board Report 0711_2.pdf
	Board Report 0711_3.pdf
	Board Report 0711_4.pdf
	Board Report 0711_5.pdf
	Board Report 0711_6.pdf
	Board Report 0711_7.pdf

	Board Report August 2011
	Report 08-2011.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_1.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_2.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_3.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_4.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_5.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_6.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_7.pdf
	Board Packet 0811_8.pdf

	Statistics FY10_11 4th Qtr

